
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 22, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 1 of 13 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
The Workshop Meeting of the West Milford Township Council was called to order by Mayor Bettina Bieri. 
 
Adequate Notice Statement 
Mayor Bieri read the following statement: 
Please note that in accordance with Chapter 231, Public Laws of 1975 of New Jersey, adequate advance 
notice of this Workshop meeting was advertised in the Herald News in its issue of January 6, 2008; copies 
were provided to the Suburban Trends, the Record, Star Ledger, and Greenwood Lake News and posted 
continuously on the bulletin board in the main corridor of the Town Hall and on file in the Office of the 
Township Clerk. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Bieri led all in attendance in a salute to the flag. 
 
Roll Call 
 
Present:  Councilmembers Philip Weisbecker, Joseph Smolinski, Robert Nolan, 

Marilyn Lichtenberg, Carmelo Scangarello.  Mayor Bettina Bieri. 
Absent:  Councilman Salvatore Schimmenti. 
Also Present:   Interim Township Administrator and Township Clerk Antoinette Battaglia 
  Township Attorney Frederick Semrau 
  
 

Agenda No. II 
Reading of or Approval of Unapproved Minutes 
Councilman Weisbecker moved and Councilwoman Lichtenberg seconded to adopt the Minutes of 
Meetings of the July 16, 2008 Executive Session as presented. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Weisbecker   Seconded:  Lichtenberg 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Abstained: Smolinski. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Councilman Weisbecker moved and Councilwoman Lichtenberg seconded to adopt the Minutes of 
Meetings of the August 6, 2008 Executive Session as presented. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Weisbecker   Seconded:  Lichtenberg 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Abstained: Nolan. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Agenda No. III 
Meetings 
 
Mayor Bieri noted the future meeting schedule: 
 
November 5, 2008 Regular Meeting  November 26, 2008 Workshop Meeting 
December 3, 2008 Regular Meeting  December 17, 2008 Workshop Meeting 
 

Agenda No. IV 
Proclamations 
 
National DECA Week. 
Eric Lawrence and Sal Iozzia – Mayor Bieri read the proclamation and presented it to Mr. Lawrence and 
Mr. Iozzia.  Mr. Iozzia talked about various events that they had participated in through DECA that 
included a food drive as well as informing people about DECA.  Mr. Lawrence explained the program and 
its purpose as well as the advantages to the participants.  Mayor Bieri asked what their favorite project 
was and they explained that they had worked with the management of the New York Giants Football 
team.  
 
 

Agenda No. V 
 
Presentations 
 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 22, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 2 of 13 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Committee for West Milfords’ 175

th
 Anniversary (2009) – Ms. Lorraine Kirwan thanked everyone for their help 

with the recent Autumn Lights Festival.  She said that there is a core group of volunteers who would be willing 
to work on the 175

th
 Township Anniversary celebration.  She explained that her primary purpose this evening 

was to discuss the upcoming anniversary.  She discussed potential themes and projects to celebrate the 
occasion.  She detailed activities, entertainment and guidelines that the committee will be discussing.  She 
spoke about offsetting the costs and looked towards Mayor Bieri and the Council for a commitment from them.  
Councilman Weisbecker asked whether Queen of Peace Church could be a possible location to hold events.  
He also stated that he would like to be on the committee.  Councilwoman Lichtenberg also expressed that she 
would like to serve on the committee.  Mayor Bieri said that from Council comments that they are in support of 
such a celebration.  Councilman Scangarelllo commended the volunteers and Ms. Kirwan specifically.  
Councilman Nolan asked if the celebration, for one year, might replace the Autumn Lights festival.  Ms. Kirwan 
said that it would not.  Interim Administrator Battaglia said that in the last budget cycle funds had been put aside 
for a Township anniversary celebration.  She said that it was opportune that many lake communities were 
present this evening and said that an idea has been suggested that each lake community develop their own 
float for a parade. 
 
Lakes Committee – Proposed Septic Maintenance Ordinance  - Ms. Lynn Mandin, Secretary to the Lakes 
Committee spoke about the proposed Septic Ordinance.  She said that the committee chose Jefferson 
Township as their model Ordinance.  She reviewed the benefits of this legislation by saying that West Milford 
must be proactive.  She said that the model ordinance was a product of the DEP grant and passed with state 
approval.  She said that improper septic maintenance is responsible for damaging household water.  Many 
residents aren’t educated as to how a septic functions.  Septics should be pumped every three years.  A 
proactive Council can avert mandates.  She deferred to David Lynch for further comments. 
 
David Lynch – explained that he is a 33 year resident of West Milford and has been on numerous committees.  
This Ordinance was initiated by a document from the Council in March of 2007.  The Highlands Act is here.  
There are now many restrictions.  He addressed fees involved by saying that they would be set by the Council.  
Another primary item seems to be to have a way to accommodate single resident dwellings.  He said that this is 
impossible.  All houses are on an equal footing.  It will roll over constantly and the committee is recommending 
pumping every three years.  It is backed by a lot of time and he thanked Township Attorney Semrau and his 
staff.  The Health Department has reviewed this and made comments as well.  He thanked Councilman 
Weisbecker for his input.  He stated that most people don’t realize that if there is no septic ordinance in place, 
the Highlands Commission will mandate their own plan, which is extreme.  Also, with regards to upgrading, the 
Highlands plan mandates an alternative onsite treatment system that requires being insured.  He further 
reviewed and explained the Highlands guidelines. 
 
Eric Hastings and Paul Zarillo, Greenwood Lake Bi-State Commission – said that they support this Ordinance 
unanimously after very indepth review.  He explained dye-tests for septics and said that the dye traveled to the 
lake faster than he had.  He feels that the Ordinance will not affect that many people because most residents 
pump their septic on a regular basis.  However it is the few who don’t that cause the problems in the lakes.  He 
said that the fees involved are insignificant.  Mr. Zarillo said that there were concerns with inspections and 
enforcement and that most of the issues have been addressed.  The Ordinance is in place in Greenwood Lake.  
Greenwood Lake Village is looking at our Ordinance and may adopt something similar. 
 
William Wallace, West Milford Township Health Officer – reviewed statistics regarding septics in the Township 
as well as the Ordinance being discussed this evening.  The Health Department recommends this Ordinance 
because it will prevent failing septics.  Upkeep is less expensive than replacement.  In West Milford there are 
8517 septics.  Using conservative numbers, this represents 200 gallons per resident and 1.7 million gallons of 
wastewater per day are generated in West Milford.  Many residents are very close to water, wetlands and 
streams. Septics that are not working properly can contaminate ground water.  The Health Department 
recommends inspection and pumping every three years.  Mayor Bieri clarified that the license fee is $15.00 and 
that the septic pumper must get a permit to pump the septic.  Mr. Wallace said that he understands that the fee 
is part of the pumpers license and not a permit fee to property owners.  Mayor Bieri asked if an increase in staff 
would be necessary to handle the licensing process and Mr. Wallace said that he didn’t believe additional staff 
would be required.   Township Attorney Semrau stated that there would not be any grandfathering with this 
Ordinance.  Mayor Bieri asked if the results of a septic being pumped would be reported to the Health 
Department.  Mr. Wallace said that this would be so and explained the process.   Councilman Smolinski asked if 
the Township can override a State mandate.  Township Attorney Semrau said that the Highlands Act will call for 
an Ordinance and if initiative is not taken they will draft and enforce an Ordinance. Councilman Nolan asked 
how many septics fail at any given time and Mr. Wallace said that the ones that have been brought to his 
Departments attention are probably in the area of 20-30 over his three month period of employment.  Based on 
EPA data, it is suggested that ground water pollution will drop by 80%.  He intends on trending the data to 
determine if the Ordinance is working.   Councilman Nolan asked about a compromise on rolling out the 
Ordinance so that the Health Department wasn’t inundated at the same time, every three years.   
Councilwoman Lichtenberg explained that in her industry she sees many homes that fail their septic inspection.  



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 22, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 3 of 13 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
She asked if each homeowner needs a sketch or a plot plan for the Health Department.  Mr. Wallace said that a 
sketch is adequate.  He additionally said that banks are raising their standards with regards to septics and he 
receives many calls from banks requiring data about maintenance.      
 
David Lynch -  said that one of the ideas that his committee has had for phasing in is that property owners who 
have recently maintained their septics could show a cancelled check or receipt to the Health Department and 
that would now be their start date for maintenance.  
 
Eric Hastings - said that he has spoken with some local septic pump companies and that they had provided 
some suggestions for phased in enactment.  Mr. Zarillo asked that the lake areas be done first.   
 
Councilman Weisbecker – commended the Lakes committee as well as Township Attorney Semrau and 
Dominic DeYanni from Mr. Semrau’s office.  They have donated their time on this.  Township Attorney Semrau 
suggested that the phase in be delegated to the Health Officer. 
 
            
 

Agenda No. VI 
Public Comments 
Mayor Bieri opened the meeting to the public after advising that there is a five-minute limit for each 
speaker. 
 
 
Renee Palermo, 160 Point Breeze Drive – read a statement about Interim Administrator Battaglia and the 
Director of Community Services and Recreation about the treatment of Township employee, Sue Pappas.  
Her statement charged Interim Administrator Battaglia with harassment.  Township Attorney Semrau 
interrupted Ms. Palermo and explained to her that she has the right to speak, but that if she speaks in any 
way related to her tenure, that this is a personnel matter.   Ms. Palermo replied that she had discussed 
this earlier with Mr. Semrau, however Mr. Semrau replied again that this is a personnel matter.  He 
cautioned her, from a legal perspective, to not speak because of confidentiality related to her tenure.  Ms. 
Palermo thanked Mr. Semrau and decided to move forward with her opinion and defended Ms. Pappas.  
Mr. Semrau again asked that Ms. Palermo be very careful of what she speaks because this is a public 
meeting with permanent record and that this has too much nexus to her tenure.   Ms. Palermo continued 
with her statement.  Mayor Bieri asked that Ms. Palermo wrap up her statement.  Councilman Smolinski 
defended Ms. Palermo and said that Ms Palermo still had one minute to speak.  Mayor Bieri said that it is 
the Council’s decision to speak for five minutes and said that she has given leeway and takes offense to 
this.  Councilman Weisbecker asked that the additional time be granted to Ms. Palermo.  Ms. Palermo 
continued with her statement which contained information about Ms Pappas being talked to in a 
threatening matter by Interim Administrator Battaglia.  She spoke in defense of Ms. Pappas by saying that 
she was and is an exemplary employee.  She said that Mayor Bieri must be held directly responsible for 
this behavior because she has filled the Township positions with those who have singled out Ms. Pappas.   
 
Joanne Donohue, Vreeland Drive, Upper Greenwood Lake – read a letter from former Director of Parks 
and Recreation, Louise Hoar.  The letter stated that when she was acting director, she found Ms. Pappas 
to be an exemplary employee.  The letter detailed many ways that Ms. Pappas enlightened and 
expanded her position.  She asked that the Council recognize Ms. Pappas for the dedicated employee 
that she is.  Ms. Donohue stated that she was appointed as acting director when Ms. Hoar retired and 
reiterated that Ms. Pappas’ work ethics were exactly as Ms. Hoar had stated.   
 
Marilyn Shultz, 18 Laurel Hollow – said that she heard some of the same rumors that Ms. Palermo had 
spoke about.  She said that she questions the motives of those who are trying to impeach the work of Ms. 
Pappas.  She said that she wonders why they are trying to marr her work record.  She said that it seems 
as if someone has a vendetta towards her.  She asked for answers from Mayor Bieri and the Council.   
 
Kevin Gilligan, 20 Gwyneth Road – said that he supports Sue Pappas.  He had worked for her at 
Bubbling Springs and spoke highly of her.  He asked that she be treated with respect. 
 
Carol Romeo, Hewitt – represents the High School Parent Teacher Student Organization.  She spoke 
about the Teen Center and Coffee House and thanked Councilman Smolinski and Councilman 
Weisbecker for their help with the Battle of the Bands.  She stated that this year, the event was not 
successful and asked why Ms. Pappas was not permitted to organize it this year.  She asked that 
personal issues be cast aside.  Ms. Romeo said that she asked Ms. Battaglia about the status of the 
Coffee House.  She directed to Ms. Battaglia by saying that she had replied that it was closed because of 
a recent leak in the roof.  Ms. Romeo further said that the Coffee House had been opened but no one 
was advised of this.  She asked where things were going with regards to the Coffee House.  She 
defended Ms. Pappas and her work ethic. 
 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 22, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 4 of 13 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Judy Winfield, 3 Caro Drive – spoke regarding Ms. Pappas by saying that she supports her.  She gave a 
brief history of her relationship with Ms. Pappas and said that they are best friends.  She said that Ms. 
Pappas volunteers her time and tackles huge undertakings.  She never turns anyone away.  She said that 
she hates seeing this happen to her.  She said that it is horrible that someone is targeting her. 
 
Ryan Greed, Broadway – said that he is a member of the Mt. Glen Lakes Association and that his lake 
supports the Septic Ordinance.  He has asked for a list of blocks and lots from the Tax Assessors office 
and for over a year has not been able to obtain this.  He is asking someone to take action. 
 
Joanne Proctor, Bald Eagle Village – read a letter from her son, Glenn Proctor, in support of Ms. Pappas.   
 
James Foody, 2 Kashaqua Trail- read a statement in support of Ms. Pappas and asked that she stop 
being picked on because if one picks on her, they pick on the children of West Milford.  She has a very 
positive attitude and is a very welcoming person.  She takes her job very seriously.  He asked why pick 
on her when she is so concerned about the community.   
 
Cindy Wicker, Macopin Road – said that Sue Pappas has helped her daughter get her lifeguard 
certification and spoke very highly of Ms. Pappas, going over and above. 
 
Russel Schub, 11 Orchard Lane – spoke in support of Ms. Pappas.  He said that it hurts to hear how she 
is being treated and being pushed out of her job.  He has always had great conversations with her and 
she is a very intelligent person.  He has played chess with her and she is not just a teacher/mentor but 
also his friend. 
 
Matt Windield, 3 Coward Drive – said that it hurts to see what is happening to Mrs. Pappas because she 
is his friend.   
 
Michele Bonana, Oak Ridge Road – said that she started a Girl Scout troop with Sue Pappas and 
everyone loves her.  She does a great job for West Milford.  Bubbling Springs was terrible before she 
started working for the Community Services and Recreation Department.  She supports Ms. Pappas. 
 
Calie Kildun, - said that she is a High School student who worked for Ms. Pappas this summer.  Ms. 
Pappas has done much for her.  She is shocked to hear what is happening. 
 
Jim Geist, 57 Bayonne Drive – said that if you want to lower taxes, cuts have to be made.  This appears 
to be a political ploy.  He trusts that the Council will do the right thing.   
 
Jim Foody, 2 Kashaqua Trail – said that there must be truth to the rumors.  Ms. Pappas is a sweetheart.  
She always smiles and does a lot for this community.  He has been here for months about drainage in his 
community which drains into the lake.  He complained about a resident spreading fertilizer and spoke with 
Township Attorney Semrau and Interim Administrator Battaglia at the end of August.  Nothing has 
happened – he is at a loss for words.   
 
Rachel Constable, 7 Mark Terrace – said that Ms. Pappas is committed and dedicated to the youth of 
West Milford. 
 
Andrew Gargano, 45 Apshawa Crossroad – said that Cablevision should be taping these Council 
meetings.  He would be interested in participating on the 175

th
 Township Anniverary committee. He said 

that the Septic Ordinance is a good idea.  Inground oil tanks should be next.  He said that when once 
speaks about a former subordinate there can be liability.  He supports Sue Pappas and vouched for her 
character.  He urged that anyone walking after dark have reflective clothing on.   
 
Lisa Papp, Morsetown Road – said that she has known Sue Pappas for about 10 years.  She has 
impeccable character.  It is hard to hire good people.  She said that employee discipline is important and 
that coaching and leadership is important.  Regarding the leak at the Coffee House, had it been at her 
business, the leak would have been repaired within two weeks.     
 
Harry Clarke, 34 Risley Road, Hewitt - said that Ms. Pappas is very helpful at Bubbling Springs and 
Westbrook.  He said that this is a political ploy.  Warwick Tpke and Lakeshore Drive intersection 
construction is great and thanked the Township Engineering Department.  He asked about Mt. Laurel 
Park and when will it be completed.  He stated that perhaps these are all false allegations about Ms. 
Pappas, but he can’t believe this.  He questioned things that are done ethically challenged and morally 
challenged.  He questioned the intelligence of two men putting up signs to support Mayor Bieri.   
 
Rich Kane, 18 Cumberland Road – said that he spends all summer at Bubblings Springs.  Ms. Pappas 
does a great job.  His son has worked for her.  She needs a break.  She is terrific. 
 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 22, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 5 of 13 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Jean Marie Sacco, Hamilton Drive – asked when the quality of safety at the skateboard park will be 
addressed.  Children come with their boxes to do tricks with and she wants the safety enforced.  She 
supports Ms. Pappas.  There has been a change in character as a result of what is happening to her.  
She thanked her for always being there.  
 
Blanche DeSimone, 24 East Park Drive – said that last week she was asked to give her permit to the 
Engineering Department so that they can design sediment basins that were supposed to be done 26 
years ago.  She asked what the timetable is to when this will get done.   
              
There being no more comments from the public Mayor Bieri moved to close the public portion of the 
meeting. 
------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Nolan       Seconded:  Smolinski 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

Agenda No. VII 
Council Comments 
 
Township Attorney, Semrau – explained to the public and employees the specifics regarding personnel 
matters.  He said that the governing body may not discuss personnel matters in a public meeting.  That is 
the law.  The public has the right to comment.  He said that in order for a personnel matter to be 
discussed in public that he has to notify an employee that the Council wishes to discuss performance. 
The employee then can choose to have that discussion in the public portion of a Council meeting, or the 
employee can elect to have the discussion in an Executive Session.  The Council must send the 
employee a Rice notice before they can discuss that employee.  He explained that the silence of the 
Council or Administrator should not be considered as anything but adhering to the law. 
 
Councilman Weisbecker – began by saying that when he won election to the Council in 1999 that Sue 
Pappas had given him a kiss.  Regarding Mr. Foody’s comments he said that he was shocked that the 
problems had not been addressed.  He asked Interim Township Administrator for an explanation who 
inturn deferred to Township Attorney Semrau who said that he is going to follow up with the Engineering 
Department.  He asked if it would be okay for him to visit the site with Interim Administrator Battaglia and 
Township Engineer McFadden.  He also asked what the time-line was to be regarding the catch basins at 
Gordon Lakes East discussed by Ms. DeSimone.  Ms. Batttaglia said that she will check with the 
Engineering Department for their timeline and keep Mr. Weisbecker apprised.  He also said that there is 
no skate park at Mt. Laurel and asked for an update to that situation.  He expressed concern that the 
basketball court is being used as a skate park.  Ms. Battaglia said that there has been a meeting with the 
Engineering firm and that there has been some kind of agreement regarding the Mt. Laurel project.  The 
contractor has performed the last phase and this needs to be okayed by the Engineering firm.  There may 
be legal issues to close the Mt. Laurel job out.  She said that there is no timetable yet for the skate park.  
Councilman Weisbecker asked what the problem was with providing lots and blocks to Mt. Glen Lakes 
and Ms. Battaglia said that she will check with the Tax Collectors office.  He then said that he cannot 
comment regarding a particular employee, however he said that the issue discussed tonight is not a 
political issue.  It has been politicized by an individual.       
 
Councilman Smolinski – thanked everyone who had spoken earlier.  He said regarding the skate park at 
Mr. Laurel that it has taken five years and would like to see it completed tomorrow. 
 
Councilman Nolan – responded to Councilman Smolinski and Weisbecker by saying that Interim 
Township Administrator Battaglia has been working this capacity for seven months, not five years.  The 
finger should not be pointed at her.   
 
Councilwoman Lichtenberg – said that in addition to septics that there is concern regarding oil tanks 
leaking into the ground.  She thanked everyone for speaking earlier and reminded all that she was 
available at Town Hall on Thursdays from 10am-12 noon. 
 
Councilman Scangarello -  told the public that their words did not fall on deaf ears.  He said that the 
matter will be looked into further.  Regarding Mt. Laurel he said that safety is a concern.  Kids are bringing 
their own equipment that is not mounted to the ground.  He said that he feels the kids are not being 
monitored regarding their use of helmets as well.  The area must be locked and patrolled.   
 
Mayor Bieri – said that she appreciates all of the public comments.  Regarding the skate park, she said 
that there have been problems with the Mt Laurel project.  Regarding the Battle of the Bands, on 
September 24

th
 the Council gave directive for the event to be rescheduled on October 18

th
.  The bands 

were at a fundraiser for on date.  However a minot repair that could have been done when the roof was 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 22, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 6 of 13 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
first leaking was delayed and the damage became greater and more costly.  She said that it is wrong to 
place blame on the current adminstration for past administrators neglect.  Regarding the personnel matter 
she said that statements were made eluding to rumors and one should bear this in mind.  She reminded 
the Council of their comments at the last meeting regarding appreciation expressed towards Interim 
Township Administrator Battaglia.  She said that she stands by her appointments and that this Township 
does use a progressive form of discipline and that all employees are treated equally.  All are expected to 
meet the same standard of accountability.  She announced that there would be a two minute recess. 
 
Meeting was called back to order. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda No. VIII 1. 
Action Items 

~ Resolution 2008-385 ~ 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, STATE OF NEW 

JERSEY AMENDING THE TOWNSHIP’S CURRENT CASH MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 8, Laws of 1982, the Township of West Milford is required to 
adopt a Cash Management Plan, including the designation of a depository or depositories; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Township of West Milford is amend its cash management plan for 2008; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Township CFO requested that the cash management plan provided by Lakeland 
Bank remain employed by the Township of West Milford, in order to continue the maximization of interest 
being earned on township deposits and investments; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Township of West Milford must create and add a separate account to the existing 
cash management plan captioned “COAH Trust Fund” as required by the State of New Jersey, Council on 
Affordable Housing (COAH); and 
 

WHEREAS, Lakeland Bank will continue to provide their current proposal as adopted the 
Governing Body of The Township of West Milford during 2008, which still remains the most beneficial and 
advantageous to the Township. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of West Milford 
that the Cash Management Plan is to continue as follows: 

 
Account Name     Account Number 
Current Account    513000179 
Payroll Account     513000160 
Capital Account     612300241 
Escrow Account     612300284 
Public Assistance I Trust Account  612300098 
Scala Trust Account    612300268 
Developer’s Trust Account   612300292 
Miscellaneous Trust Account   612300055 
Heritage Trust Account    612409634 
Dog Trust Account    612409626 
Unemployment Trust Account   612409596 
Assessment Trust Account   612410071 
Public Assistance II Trust Account  612409618 
LOSAP Trust Account    612410055 
Open Space Trust Account   612410047 
COAH Trust Fund    Pending 

 
Adopted:  October 22, 2008 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Weisbecker   Seconded:  Scangarello 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Agenda No. VIII 2. 
~ Resolution 2008 - 386 ~ 

 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 22, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 7 of 13 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, STATE OF NEW 

JERSEY AUTHORIZING THE RENEWAL OF 2008 – 2009 JUNKYARD LICENSES  
 
 WHEREAS, applications for renewal of 2008-2009 Licenses have been received and reviewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Township Officials did conduct inspections of premises and have provided 
recommendations;  and 
 
 WHEREAS, satisfactory recommendations have been received from the Police, Fire, Building, Health 
and Zoning Departments; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township Clerk is directed to issue the license 
certificates for the Mayor and Township Council of the Township of West Milford as follows: 
 

LICENSE/LICENSEE/T/A 
 
John Kardanow, t/a Mountaintop Auto 
104 Lincoln Avenue, West Milford, NJ 07480 
 
Jeannette Marchiafava, t/a 110 Weaver Road 
49 Timber Lane, West Milford, NJ 07480 
 
Frank Kasabri, t/a West Milford Auto Recyclers 
3 Brookvale Terrace, Kinnelon, NJ 07405 

 
Adopted:  October 22, 2008 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Weisbecker   Seconded:  Scangarello 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Agenda No. VIII 3. 
~ Resolution 2008 - 389  ~ 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, STATE OF NEW 
JERSEY RESCHEDULING THE SALE OF CERTAIN LANDS AND PROPERTIES WHICH ARE NO 

LONGER NEEDED FOR PUBLIC USE BY THE TOWNSHIP  
 
 WHEREAS, the Township of West Milford is the owner of certain lands and premises within the 
Township of West Milford; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Township Council of the Township of West Milford does hereby 
determine that the lands and properties set forth in Schedule A are no longer needed for public use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township of West Milford desires to make available for public sale said lands, 
with the right of prior refusal to be afforded to adjacent property owners pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:12-13.2. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Council of the Township of West 
Milford as follows: 
 
1. The Township of West Milford hereby declares that the lands and premises set forth in Schedule 

A are no longer needed for public use and should be sold in accordance with appropriate statutes 
of the State of New Jersey.    

2. The Township Council of the Township of West Milford hereby authorizes the Township Clerk to 
offer for sale to the highest bidder by open public sale at auction the property set forth in 
Schedule A attached hereto and made a part hereof.    

3. The public sale previously scheduled to take place at the West Milford Township Municipal 
Building, 1480 Union Valley Road, West Milford, New Jersey, on October 22, 2008, at 6:00 p.m. 
is hereby rescheduled to December 17, 2008 at 6:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as the matter 
can be heard and publicly announced, provided the sale is not cancelled.   

4. The public sale, if not cancelled, shall take place by open public sale at auction to the highest 
bidder.    

5. The successful bidder at the time of the sale must present cash or a check or money order, 
payable to the Township of West Milford, in an amount that equals 10% of the assessor’s 
suggested minimum.  This deposit shall be non-refundable.  The balance of the purchase price 
shall be paid to the Township no later than sixty (60) days following the acceptance by the 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 22, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 8 of 13 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Township and the tender of marketable title to the purchaser and submitted to the Township.  The 
purchaser shall be entitled to possession immediately following closing of title.     

6. The Township makes no representation as to the title or any other aspects of the land to be sold.   
7. At closing of title, purchaser shall also pay to the Township a buyer’s premium in the amount of 

ten (10%) percent of the bid amount.   
8. The Township reserves the right to accept or reject any and all bids at the public sale and not to 

award to the highest bidder.  Such decision will be made by the Township Council at a Public 
Meeting within 30 days from the date of such sale.   

9. In the event the Township of West Milford is unable to convey clear and marketable title, 
insurable at regular rates by a title insurance company authorized to do business in the State of 
New Jersey, the Township shall forthwith return to the purchaser the deposit and neither party 
shall have any further rights against the other. The acceptance of a deed by the purchaser from 
the Township shall extinguish any claims the said purchaser may have against the Township of 
West Milford in connection with the quality of title conveyed.    

10. All conveyances by the Township shall be made by way of a Quit Claim Deed, unless an 
adequate title binder prepared at the expense of the purchaser is forwarded to the Township prior 
to the conveyance and discloses that the Township holds marketable title in which case a Bargain 
and Sale Deed with Covenants Against Grantor’s Acts will be the form of conveyance. The 
Township will include within its deed a metes and bounds description based upon a survey if a 
survey and metes and bounds description is obtained by the purchaser.   

11. The Township Council of the Township of West Milford reserves the right to waive any and all 
defects and informalities in any proposal and to accept or reject the highest responsible and 
responsive bidder deemed to be in the best interests of the Township.   

12. In those cases where the property being offered is an under-sized lot, adjoining property owners 
shall be given the first right to bid. If purchased by an adjoining property owner, the under-sized 
property shall merge into the purchaser’s current lot.  Furthermore, the property shall not be 
further subdivided as the conveyance is being made to accommodate the adjoining property 
owner as to his/her current residence, not for subdivision purposes.   

13. If no adjoining property owners bid, the bidding will be opened to the public. The deed of 
conveyance for all under-sized lots that are sold to any party other than an adjoining property 
owner shall contain a restriction that the lot cannot be built upon.  If it is a conforming lot, then no 
such deed restrictions shall be placed on the transfer of title.  The Township will not represent, 
warrant, or guarantee the right to build on or improve any of the properties listed for sale.  All 
properties will be subject to all Federal, State, Local Laws and Ordinances.    

14. A public notice of sale shall be published in the Township’s official newspaper at least once a 
week for two consecutive weeks, the last publication being no earlier than seven (7) days prior to 
the date set forth for the public sale, which notice shall contain the conditions of this sale in 
accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:12-13(a).   

15. In the event the successful bidder fails to close on the property, he shall forfeit ten percent (10%) 
of the purchase price.    

16. The resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
Adopted:  October 22, 2008 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Weisbecker   Seconded:  Lichtenberg 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Discussion:  Interim Township Administrator Battaglia explained that the sale had originally been 
scheduled for this evening, however there had been the possiblity of adjacent properties being 
adequately notified and she said that it is because of this that the sale be rescheduled.  
 
  

Agenda No. VIII 4. 
~ Resolution 2008 - 390  ~ 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC AND STATE OF 
NEW JERSEY AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION 

EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD AND ANTHONY 
MAUTONE FOR THE RECONSTRUCTION OF GORDON LAKES DAM 

 
 WHEREAS, Anthony Mautone is the owner of property located at Block 12401 Lot 15.03, and as 
further described in survey of the property attached hereto; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Township of West Milford has formally requested that Mr. Mautone grant it a 
temporary construction easement to allow the Township to go on his property with the necessary labor, 
equipment, vehicles and material at any and all times for the purposes of facilitating the 
reconstruction/rehabilitation of the Gordon Lakes Dam; and 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 22, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 9 of 13 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

WHEREAS, Mr. Mautone has agreed to enter into such temporary construction easement 
agreement, and, under the recommendation of the Township Engineer, the Township desires to enter into 
such temporary construction easement agreement for the aforementioned purposes, subject to the terms 
and conditions set forth in the temporary construction easement agreement, attached hereto and made a 
part hereof.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Township Council of the Township of 
West Milford, County of Passaic, State of New Jersey that the Township shall execute and enter into the 
attached temporary construction easement agreement with Mr. Anthony Mautone pursuant to the terms 
and conditions as stated in the attached agreement. 
 
Adopted:  October 22, 2008 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Weisbecker   Seconded:  Scangarello 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Discussion:  Township Attorney Semrau gave an update and said that Mr. Mautone has cooperated with 
Engineering and that changes were made this afternoon as well as sign-offs secured.   

 
Agenda No. IX 

Approval of Expenditures 
~ Resolution No. 2008- 387 ~ 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PAYMENT OF BILLS  
 

WHEREAS, the Township Treasurer has submitted to the members of the Township Council a 
report listing individual disbursement checks prepared by his office in payment of amounts due by the 
Township. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township Treasurer’s report of checks 
prepared by him be approved and issued as follows: 
  

Acct # Account Name Amount 

1 Current Account. . . . . . . . . . . . $94,507.25 

2 Reserve Account . . . . . . . . . .  1,788.00 

3 Animal Control Trust  

6 Capital. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 310,801.42 

7 Grants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,924.48 

8 Refuse. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 90,798.97 

9 Refunds. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

12 General Ledger. . . . . . . . . . . . . 49,341.42 

16 Heritage Trust. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

14 Open Space Trust 10,639.65 

17 Trust . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,321.00 

18 Development Escrow. . . . . . . . . 3,729.00 

19 LOSAP 96,600.00 

20 Special Reserve  

  

Total $676,451.19 

Less Refund Resolution  

Actual Bill List $676,451.19 

  

Other Payments 500.00 

Less Refund Resolution  

  

Total Expenditures $676,951.19 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Weisbecker   Seconded:  Scangarello 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 22, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 10 of 13 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Abstain: Councilman Nolan abstained Valley Health portion only.   
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Discussion:  Councilman Nolan spoke regarding a payment being made to Valic and explained that it was 
for payment to the LOSAP program.  He said that according to the math the contribution is being made 
for 138 individuals.  He has talked with Finance Director Magnotti about this as there should have been 
more participants.  He would like the Township to ask the fire companies for a roster of who is 
participating.  Ms. Battagglia said that Mr. Magnotti reached out to the fire companies from a different 
perspective and said that because of the amount of time in training and on the job, it takes quite a long 
time for the volunteer to be eligible.  Quite often volunteers do not complete the paperwork to sign up for 
the program.  Councilman Smolinski said that the Ambulance Squad members keep current with the 
program.  Councilman Nolan asked for an accounting of the enrollees.    

 
 

Agenda No. X 
Discussion Items 
 

1) Establish Committee – Council + Library Board – Mayor Bieri expressed that she attended the 
last Library Board meeting and that they have appointed two members to the committee.  She 
said that the Council needs to decide if the number of members is what the Council would like 
and perhaps who would be assigned to the committee.  Councilman Nolan asked if having 
Mayor Bieri as part of both organizations could create a problem and it was decided that the 
makeup of the committee was good.  Mayor Bieri said that the Library is anxious to begin to 
make decisions.  Councilman Scangarello and Councilman Nolan were nominated to the 
committee. 

2) Establish Committee – To Review recycling & Garbage Contracts – Mayor Bieri said that it 
was the intention at this time to establish the makeup of the committee.  Councilman 
Weisbecker said that he would like to see the committee comprised of two or three members 
from the Beautification and Recycling committee.  This would bring the number of members to 
9.  Interim Administrator Battaglia said that Councilman Scangarello had said that he would 
like to serve as the Citizen liaison.  Councilman Weisbecker and Councilman Nolan were 
assigned to the committee.   

3) Establish Committee – Cablevision Franchise Renewal – Mayor Bieri said that it is the 
intention at this time to establish the makeup of the committee.  Currently proposed is 5 citizen 
members and a Council liaison.  Interim Administrator Battaglia said that an advertisement 
has been posted in an effort to gain membership throughout the community.  Councilman 
Nolan asked regarding the report being submitted prior to January 31, 2009.  Ms. Battaglia 
said that she took that date from Mr. Semrau.  To give time for the report to come to Council 
and have a public hearing that this date is required.   

4) Deferred Compensation Plan Options for Municipal Employees – Interim Administrator 
Battaglia said that Township Financial Director Magnotti has recommended Lincoln Financial 
and that he is still researching other companies.  Councilman Nolan said that Valley Hospital 
invests through Lincoln Financial.  Councilman Weisbecker asked how Valley Hospital 
employees had fared in the recent stock market downturn.  Ms. Battaglia again expressed that 
Lincoln Financial has fared reasonably well.  She said that a number of employees have 
reached out to them on an individual basis and that their feedback has been positive.       

5) Grant Extension – 2005 Recreational Trails Program + Professional Services Contract – 
NY/NJ Trails Conference – consensus was to proceed 

6) Contract – Professional Services – Appraisals for 352 Warwick Turnpike – Township Attorney 
Semrau said that he is still awaiting further proposals. 

7) Contracts – Snow Plowing – Councilwoman Lichtenberg questioned tandems and asked how 
this was regulated.  Councilman Scangarello said that arrangements are made through the 
Engineering Department and was dependent upon the amount of snowfall.  Each contractor is 
designated a different part of town and the equipment is assigned to an area appropriate for 
that equipment.  It was clarified that the 56 trucks that were to be awarded were in addition to 
the Townships equipment.   

8) Contract – Purchase of Ice Control Aggregates – consensus was to proceed. 
9) Contract – Purchase of Guide Rails – consensus was to proceed. 
10) Jungle Habitat – Township Attorney Semrau said that he had received a phone call yesterday 

and correspondence today.  He has received the revised lease agreement and the 
correspondence states that the management plan must be updated.  He will work on the 
management plan.  The State wants a survey of the property and he will get proposals for the 
survey.  He hopes that with this recent attention that it gets completed before years end.  He 
said that he will report back to the Council with some type of timetable after meeting with the 
Administration and reviewing items that need to be tended to. 

 
Agenda No. XII 

 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 22, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 11 of 13 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Reports of Mayor, Administrator, Council Members, Attorney and Clerk 
 
Councilman Weisbecker – asked regarding the Sidewalk Grant application, if there had been any 
updates.  Interim Administrator Battaglia said that a survey would be being performed to establish income 
requirements.  She said that she has sent a letter to clarify that Lincoln Hill be considered as individual 
units.  He then said that the Planning Board Ordinance Committee is working on reviewing special events 
for businesses.  He asked for consensus from the Council to agree to send a memo to the Committee, 
advising them of the support of the Council.  He further explained that the Committee is reviewing various 
Ordinances.  Council consensus was to make a formal gesture.  Ms. Battaglia was instructed to send a 
memo to the Committee regarding this.  He reminded everyone to vote in the upcoming election. 
 
Councilman Nolan – said that he has been out campaigning with James Warden and Andy Gargano and 
that there has been much frustration expressed with current politicians confusing Council business with 
partisan politics.    
 
Councilman Smolinski – said regarding Random Woods that the Township has received $250,000.00 
from the county.  He asked Township Attorney Semrau to clarify the report that he had read.  Mr. Semrau 
said that the grants are awarded and the municipality then proceeds with the acquisition.  The County 
then reimburses the municipality upon completion of the acquisition.  Councilman Smolinski spoke 
regarding a one million dollar Federal Grant awarded to the County and that the Federal Government had 
taken it back.  He said that the county lost  money because they didn’t use it and have taken it back from 
West Milford tax payers.  He expressed that he thought the way it is handled is a disgrace.  He 
commented that the Township is assesed four tax points towards open space and is concerned about the 
Township getting the money back.   
 
Councilwoman Lichtenberg – outlined upcoming events in the Township.  She outlined numerous events 
surrounding Halloween as well as a Family event at Bubbling Springs.  She said that flu vaccinations are 
still available and gave the Health Dept. telephone number.  She reminded everyone that there are food 
boxes in two locations and that there are various organizations collecting food for the food banks.  There 
is also a coat drive.  She reminded everyone to vote and that she is available at Town Hall on Thursdays 
from 10am-12 noon.   
 
Councilman Scangarello – commented regarding committee appointments and that Councilman 
Schimmenti will be absent for another couple of weeks.  He asked Township Attorney Semrau if anything 
needed to be done by the Council members regarding the absense of Councilman Schimmenti.  
Councilman Scangarello motioned to excuse Councilman Schimmenti and it was seconded by 
Councilman Weisbecker.  He then said that the Boy Scouts of America are seeking to hold their jamboree 
at Jungle Habitat.  He said that the BSA were instrumental in the cleanup of Jungle Habitat.  Volunteers 
have made the cleanup of Jungle Habitat possible.  Interim Administrator Battaglia said that she has been 
contacted by the BSA regarding the jamboree and that they are proceeding through the proper channels.  
He reminded everyone to vote on November 4.      
 
Mayor Bieri – said that she has positive financial news for the Township.  Recycling revenue is up.  She 
commended Interim Administrator Battaglia for sending purchase orders to the Finance Department to 
see if there are funds in the various accounts before signing them.  She additionally said that Attorney 
Fred Knapp was terminated for approaching his cap.  She reviewed other savings effectuated this year 
that totalled almost $600,000.  She outlined these savings.  She said that she hope to increase efficiency 
and continue to reduce spending.   
 
Antoinette Battaglia, Interim Administrator and Township Clerk – said that the Chief of Police has 
approached her regarding an Over Limit Grant request.  This is a drunk driving initiative that has been 
conducted in the past and is very successfully.  In 2007 the total cost was $649.34 with signficant 
increase in DWI’s, saving lives, as well as bringing in revenue to the Township.  If Council is amenable, 
she will draft a resolution  for the next meeting.  She brought to the Council’s attention a company that is 
trying to arrange a meeting to discuss the Tennesee Pipeline.  She will keep the Council apprised of any 
meeting forthcoming.  The Township has received correspondence from Passaic County Admin, Tony 
DeNova regarding the States questionnaire regarding a wastewater management plan.  She asked for 
comments from the Council to convey back to him.  Sussex Co. has already conducted their wastewater 
management plan.  Township Attorney Semrau said that with this process the County might possibly 
begin to direct the plan, affecting other aspects of the Township.  A representative from the Township 
must participate in the process.  She reminded eveyrone that polls on November 4 are open from 6am-
8pm.  She is expecting a very large turnout and asked that everyone take this into consideration.  It is a 
very long day for the poll workers and she asked for patience.   
 
Township Attorney Fred Semrau, Esq. – said that he spoke with Tennesee Gas Line earlier in the day. He 
is expecting a draft agreement.   He will have a grant agreement that Councilman Smolinski had spoke 
about and said that he had his bi-weekly phone call with DT Allen regarding this and they agreed to a 30 
day stay on the contract.  He spoke with Township Planner McGroarty earlier regarding COAH and the 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 22, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 12 of 13 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Highlands Commission.  Mr. McGroarty is on target with the Master  Plan.  Mr. Semrau said that he has 
spoken with Fletcher Platt, the individual who was retained regarding the Wanaque Sewerage Authority 
and he will be at the next meeting.  It may be in the interest of the Township that the Council speak to him 
in Executive Session and he will advise.  He reviewed that in Executive Session the Council will be 
discussing Random Woods as well as potential litigation surrounding 2009 Tax Appeals as well as an 
ongoing matter of West Milford vs. O’Shea. 
 

Agenda No. XIII 
Executive Session 

~ Resolution No. 2008-388 ~ 
 

MOTION FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of West Milford on the 22
nd
 day of 

October 2008, that: 
 

1. Prior to the conclusion of this Workshop Meeting, the Township Council shall meet in Executive 
Session, from which the public shall be excluded, to discuss matters as permitted pursuant to 
N.J.S.A. 10:4-12, sub-section (s): 
(  )     b.  (1)   Confidential or excluded matters, by express provision of Federal law or 

State statute or rule of court. 
(  )     b.  (2)   A matter in which the release of information would impair a right to receive  
   funds from the Government of the United States. 

  (  )     b.  (3)   Material the disclosure of which constitutes an unwarranted invasion of  
     individual privacy. 

(  )     b.  (4)   A collective bargaining agreement including negotiations. 
(X)     b.  (5)   Purchase, lease or acquisition of real property, setting of banking rates or 
   investment of public funds, where it could adversely affect the public  
   interest if disclosed. 

� Random Woods, Block 8001, Lot 1 
(  )     b.  (6) Tactics and techniques utilized in protecting the safety and property of the  
   public, if disclosure could impair such protection.  Investigation of  
   violations of the law. 
(X)     b.  (7)   Pending or anticipated litigation or contract negotiations other than in  
  subsection   b. (4) herein or matters falling within the attorney-client  
  privilege. 

� Potential Litigation – 2009 Tax Appeals 
� Martin O’Shea v. Township of West Milford {PAS-L-184308}  

(  )     b. (8)   Personnel matters. 
(  )     b.  (9)   Deliberations after a public hearing that may result in penalties. 

 
2. The time when the matter(s) discussed pursuant to Paragraph 1 hereof can be disclosed to the 

public is as soon as practicable after final resolution of the aforesaid matter(s). 
 

Adopted:  October 22, 2008 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Weisbecker   Seconded:  Scangarello 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
Agenda No. XIV 

XIV. Appointments and Resignations 
 
Facilities Assessment Committee (2 vacancies) 
 
Councilman Scangarello made a motion to nominate Gerald Storms and William Remia to the Facilities 
Assessment Committee.   
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Nolan     Seconded:  Smolinski 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 22, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 13 of 13 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Agenda No. XV 

Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, the Township Council adjourned the meeting 
at 11:19 p.m. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Weisbecker    Seconded:  Nolan 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Approved: December 17, 2008 
 
Respectfully Submitted: 
Judy Manning, Part Time Secretary 
 
 

_________________________________ 
MAYOR BETTINA BIERI 
PRESIDING OFFICER 

 
 

_________________________________ 
ANTOINETTE BATTAGLIA 

TOWNSHIP CLERK 


